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THEMBA J. BLOSE
(1954 – 2014)

It is with saddened hearts that we
report the death of Councillor
Themba J. Blose, who during his
tenure at Amafa, served as the
Chairperson of the Institutional
Governance Committee and was a
member of the Human Resources
Committee and the Community
Heritage and Grading Committee. In
addition,
he
served
various
community-upliftment projects with
diligence and fervour.
Councillor Blose was the victim of a
violent hijacking and succumbed to
th
his injuries on 28 August 2014.
He will be fondly remembered will
forever remain in our hearts.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OF AMAFA AKWAZULU NATALI FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
As chairman of the Council of Amafa AkwaZulu Natali, it gives me great pleasure to announce, that
yet again, the entity has received a clean audit opinion from the Auditor-General. It is the fourth year
in succession that Amafa has attained the metaphoric “Holy Grail of Public Administration”. My
congratulations and sincere appreciation goes out to all staff and other role-players that contributed
toward the unprecedented achievement. This feat is made all the more remarkable in the face of the
various challenges that arose during a difficult 2014/15 financial year.
Again, we have to report that the post of Chief Executive Officer still remains vacant. As an interim
measure in August 2013, the Council appointed Mrs. Lindiwe Zerich Msomi to this office in an acting
capacity. Whilst Mrs. Msomi’s appointment addressed the immediate vacancy, it was not intended to
be a long-term solution. During the 14/15 financial year, the post was advertised and interviews were
completed. The final decision for the appointment for the Chief Executive Officer rests with the
Executive Authority, viz. the Honourable Premier, ES Mchunu.
Most significantly, the Hon. Premier announced his intention to the KZN Legislature, to merge the
functions of heritage within the Province and form one (1) institution to oversee the mandate. This
means that once the new “heritage body” is formed, Amafa will no longer exist as an independent
public entity. The Premier though did state that a task team comprising various stakeholders would
oversee the logistics for the merger and/or formation of the new heritage body.
Sadly, the Council lay to rest one (1) of its members, Mr. TJ Blose, who on 28 August 2014,
succumbed to injuries after a violent hijacking. Mr. Blose was actively involved in various community
upliftment projects in addition to having served in various portfolios as a member of the Amafa
Council.
One (1) of the key long-terms projects that the Council has committed itself toward is the proclamation
of the Emakhosini region as a World Heritage Site. Not only will this project look to preserve and
promote the heritage fabric associated with this region, cemented in history as the birthplace of the
Zulu Nation but it will also have invaluable spin-offs on a global scale. The project, in its second year,
saw the compilation of the baseline research for the nomination of this region as a World Heritage
Site. The project will continue in the 2015/16 year.
We are pleased to announce the provision of additional funding from our parent department, the
Office of the Premier. For the 15/16 financial year, a further R 5 000 000 has been added to our
conditional grant. However, R 3 040 000 was allocated to address the operational deficit created as a
result of the rate of inflation exceeding the normal rate of increase of the conditional grant. This
additional amount to the operational budget will carry forward into subsequent years.
The remaining R 1 960 00, was allocated for the much-needed improvements and/or acquisition of
various items of property, plant and equipment. This amount is a once-off allocation and will not carry
through the Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) period.
While the additional funding is much appreciated, this does not address long-term issues such as the
increased responsibilities as a result of the non-cooperation of local government sectors, the
attracting and retention of scarce-skilled staff, the marketing of the entity, addressing staff
remuneration matters, etc.
Nevertheless, the Council of Amafa is proud to report that for the 2014/15 year, we have achieved
86,75 % of our planned annual targets. A further 6,02 % of targets will be completed during the First
Quarter of the 2015/16 financial year. Therefore, only 7,23 % of the planned targets will not have
been achieved, which given the constrained environment in which Amafa operates, is a remarkable
achievement. Further, all projects rolled over from the 13/14 financial year into the 14/15 period have
been completed.
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The KwaZulu Cultural Museum Complex, one of Amafa’s core projects saw the commencement of the
construction of two (2) additional collection rooms. Due to factors beyond our control, the completion
of the project was delayed but it is expected that the rooms will be finalised during the First Quarter of
the 2015/16 year. The focus area for our collection trips was the Bergville region where we were able
to acquire approximately 198 items of wooden and grass artefacts that were previously underrepresented in our collections. During the 2014/15 year, we had approximately 5 759 visitors to the
Centre.
Amafa continues to play a pivotal role in maintaining provincial sites of conflict, notably the
Isandlwana, Shiyane and Spioenkop Battlefields, which, between them attracted 34 937 visitors.
Although Amafa is able to allocate only a small budget towards new markers, beautiful markers were
designed and erected at the following ancestral sites, Nthsingwayo, Lembede, Umbiya and Makheni.
In addition, one (1) Site of Conflict marker was erected at the Ceza Graves.
The branding of heritage sites and/or landmarks saw Amafa focussing on the Edumbe and uThungula
District Municipalities, where twenty-seven (27) sites were marked although we had initially planned to
do twenty-five (25) sites. The additional two (2) sites were marked within the initial budget estimates.
Unfortunately, during the year, we were unable to complete the community-driven projects viz. the
“Community-Student Group Survey” and the “Community Heritage Memorial”. The survey could not
be undertaken due to logistical problems from the student group, who were unable to accommodate
the scope of work in their study calendar. The site nominated for the erection of the Community
Heritage Memorial was the Shakaskraal Indentured Labourers Cemetery. This memorial is expected
to be erected in the First Quarter of the 2015/16 year.
The construction of monuments and markers in recognition of heritage represents only one (1) aspect
of the core functions of Amafa AkwaZulu Natali. Another key and larger mandate is the maintenance
of sites in and around the Province. Despite a dwindling budget, Amafa still managed to provide
maintenance to approximately 45 minor sites of conflict within the Province, partnering with the
Commonwealth War Graves Commission in maintaining certain of the major military cemeteries.
Beyond this, our key centres, viz. Shiyane, Isandlwana, Dukuza, Ondini (and related sites) and the
Multi Media Centre at uMgungundlovu are also maintained. Such maintenance work utilises the
larger portion of our operational budget. Stakeholder liaisons often assist in the maintenance of other
sites around KwaZulu Natal. Amafa wishes to extend its appreciation to such partners for their
involvement during the year.
The state of the art Multimedia Centre at uMgungundlovu now stands as the principle interpretive
facility dealing with the birth and history of the Zulu nation. Certain of the computer aided exhibits,
such as a three dimensional map table onto which spatial information is projected, are world firsts.
The centre has been attended by over 4 369 visitors during this year and has received wide-spread
praise from both local and international visitors.
Amafa is not only tasked with management of heritage sites. Monitoring of compliance with heritage
legislation and maintenance of heritage inventories are another major core functions. During the year
under review, Amafa staff undertook several heritage surveys aimed at updating information within
the Provincial Heritage Database. The various heritage databases now hold in excess of 10 000
heritage records. A new Cultural Heritage Management Plan for the Ukhahlamba Drakensberg World
Heritage Site was developed. Amafa staff handled over 1 000 permit applications relating to the Built
Environment and Archaeology, which compares favourably to the previous year. This is despite the
fact that the staff complement is under serious pressure.
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The 2014/15 Annual Report will demonstrate that the staff of Amafa, have met their statutory
obligations, obtained best value-for-money, and have eliminated fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
Again, I wish to extend my sincerest appreciation to my fellow councillors, the executive and staff for
their contribution during this year.

MR. JABULANI SITHOLE
CHAIRMAN: AMAFA AKWAZULU NATALI
28 JULY 2015

FORT NONGQAYI, ESHOWE
Fort Nongqayi, Eshowe (pictured above) itself was the home of the Zululand Native
Police or “Nongqayi”, a word indicating that “the matter will be brought into the light” a
very apt name for an effective police force that served the area from 1883 until 1901,
and was then revived in 1906 during the Bambatha Uprising. The fort was erected in
1883 by two local men after the original attempt by itinerant builders fell down. The
building was used as offices, blacksmith workshop and stables, the men being
housed outside the fort in traditional grass huts. The central courtyard was the parade
ground.
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SUBMISSION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
In accordance with the legislative requirements, as detailed by Section 55 of the Public Finance
Management Act, No. 1 of 1999, we have the pleasure of presenting the Annual Report for the
financial period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015.
Mission of Amafa AkwaZulu Natali
“Amafa seeks to be a well-resourced entity, excelling in the protection and conservation of the
heritage resources of KwaZulu Natal, by using an innovative and sustainable management approach
that empowers and creates opportunities for its people to participate in heritage matters”
Vision of Amafa AkwaZulu Natali
The premier provincial heritage conservation custodian, that has by 2020, co-created a shared history
for all people of KwaZulu Natal
Values of Amafa AkwaZulu Natali
The Council of Amafa subscribes to the following values:
 Consultation with stakeholders;
 Setting service standards of excellence;
 Increasing access to sites and facilities;
 Ensuring courtesy to the general public;
 Providing information that is useful, relevant and meaningful;
 Openness and transparency in all its endeavours;
 Providing value-for-money;
 Providing leadership;
 Conducting itself with integrity and honour; and
 Collaboration in work undertaken.
Amafa AkwaZulu Natali is the custodian of the heritage resources of KwaZulu – Natal. We hold
ourselves accountable for the discharge of our responsibilities in a professional manner, whilst aiming
to promote the preservation of heritage resources within our province. We aspire to the highest
standards of operational and fiscal management and discipline while acknowledging the importance
of service delivery.
We endeavour to work as a team, planning with precision and executing duties with enthusiasm and
commitment, striving at all times to improve service delivery, organisational performance and
transparency in our operations. Staff is considered a valuable resource in which we will invest
thereby affording opportunities to enhance skills and accordingly careers.
Our dealings with the public and colleagues will be conducted with integrity, displaying respect,
fairness and objectivity. In achieving this, we will honour the faith and reliance placed upon the
organisation.

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

Page 7

PICTURED ABOVE: THE SPIRIT OF THE EMAKHOSINI (AT THE EMAKOSINI VALLEY)

LEGISLATION
Amafa AkwaZulu Natali is governed in the main by the following legislation:
NATIONAL LEGISLATION
PROVINCIAL LEGISLATION
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.

Basic Conditions of Employment Act 75 of 1997
Compensation for Occupational injuries and Diseases
Act 130 of 1993
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act 108 of
1996
Council for the Built Environment Act 43 of 2000
Criminal Procedure Act 51 of 1977
Deed’s Registries Act 47 of 1937
Electronic Communications Act 36 of 2005
Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998
Expropriation Act 55 of 1965
Extension of Security of Tenure Act 62 of 1997
Films and Publications Act 65 of 1996
Firearms Control Act 60 of 2000
Formalities in Respect of Leases of Land Act 18 of 1969
Government Employees Pension Fund Law 21 of 1996
Human Tissue Act 65 of 1983
Immigration Act 13 of 2002
Income Tax Act 36 of 1996
Institution of Legal Proceedings Against Certain Organs
of State Act 40 of 2002
Labour Relations Act 66 of 1995
Land Reform Act 3 of 1996
Magistrate’s Court Act 32 of 1944
Medical Schemes Act 131 of 1998
National Environmental Management Act 107 of 1998
National Heritage Resources Act 25 of 1999
National House of Traditional Leaders Act 10 of 1997
Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993
Prescription Act 68 of 1969
Prevention of Illegal Eviction from and Unlawful
Occupation of Land Act 19 of 1998
Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000
Promotion of Administrative Justice Act 3 of 2000
Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair
Discrimination Act 4 of 2000
Protection of Information Act 84 of 1982
Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999
Skills Development Act 97 of 1998
Skills Development Levies Act 9 of 1999
Supreme Court Act 59 of 1959
Tax on Retirement Funds Act 38 of 1996
Unemployment Insurance Act 63 of 2001
Unemployment Contributions Act 4 of 2002
Workmen’s Compensation Act 30 of 1941
World Heritage Convention Act 94 of 1996

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
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KwaZulu-Natal Cemeteries and Crematoria Act 12 of
1996
KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Archives Act 5 of 2000
KwaZulu-Natal Internal Audit Act 2 of 2001
KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Roads Act 4 of 2001
KwaZulu-Natal Traditional Leadership and Governance
Act 5 of 2005
KwaZulu-Natal Pound Act 3 of 2006
KwaZulu-Natal Heritage Act 4 of 2008
KwaZulu-Natal Planning and Development Act 6 of 2008
KwaZulu-Natal Land Administration Act 3 of 2003
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In addition to these legislative acts, Amafa AkwaZulu Natali implements various updated policies and
documented systems of procedure for the financial and operational management of the organisation.
Clouston Memorial Gardens
The
Memorial
Gardens
were
established on the site where General
Buller had his headquarters during the
Battle of Colenso in December 1899.
Located here were the field hospitals
that treated soldiers wounded in battle.
Several graves and memorials in and
around Colenso were relocated to the
Memorial Garden Site.

HERITAGE RESOURCES
Within the KwaZulu – Natal Heritage Act, No. 4 of 2008, the following are categorised as “heritage
assets”:
 Places, buildings, structures and equipment of cultural significance;
 Places to which oral traditions are attached and/or places associated with living heritage;
 Historic settlements and townscapes;
 Landscapes and natural features of scientific and cultural importance;
 Archaeological and paleontological sites;
 Graves and burial grounds;
 Movable objects including:
 Objects recovered from the soil or waters of the Province of KwaZulu – Natal, including
archaeological and paleontological objects, materials, meteorites and rare geological
specimens;
 Ethnographic art and objects;
 Military objects;
 Objects of decorative art;
 Objects of fine art;
 Objects of scientific or technological interest;
 Books, records, documents, photographic positives and negatives, graphs, films and
video materials and sound recordings;
 Battlefields; and
 Traditional building techniques and vernacular architecture.
Names:
Born:
Died:
Reign:
Predecessor:
Successor:
In summary:

King Mpande kaSenzangakhona
1798,
Babanango,
Zululand
(KwaZulu Natal)
19 November 1872, Nodwengu in
Zululand (now KwaZulu Natal)
1840 – 1872
Dingane kaSenzangakhona Zulu
uCetshwayo kaMpande

King Mpande was the King of the Zulu’s once he
defeated Dingane with the help of the Voortrekkers. He
reigned as King from 1840 to 1872 and was succeeded
by Cetshwayo.
King Mpande ruled the Zulu nation from 1840 to 1872,
making him the longest reigning Zulu king. He was a
half-brother of Shaka and Dingane, who both preceded
him as king.
GRAVE OF KING MPANDE

CATEGORIES OF PROTECTION
Heritage Landmarks:

For sites not the property of the Province, a provincially supported body, a
local authority or a body supported by a local authority.
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Heritage Objects:

Are artefacts and the collection thereof, which have substantial aesthetic,
historic, scientific and/or technological importance or which have a significant
connection to a site protected in terms of the abovementioned
General Protections:
Are applicable to any structure older than sixty (60) years, public memorials
and monuments, battlefields and archaeological, rock art, paleontological and
meteorite sites.
Provincial Landmark: For sites which are the property of the Province, a provincially supported
body or a local authority.
Provincial Heritage Register:
Is an inventory of conservation-worthy sites as published by notice in
the Provincial Gazette
STRATEGIC GOALS OF AMAFA AKWAZULU NATALI
The Council of Amafa has adopted the following core goals which have been integrated into this
Strategic Plan:
1. Amafa aims to promote awareness of the significance and value of cultural heritage resources
while ensuring that cultural heritage management is integrated into the economic, social and
environmental activities in the Province;
2. Amafa aims to ensure that the full diversity of cultural heritage resources in KwaZulu-Natal is
conserved and managed;
3. Amafa aims to promote the sustainable and equitable use of cultural heritage resources in the
Province, while implementing the controls necessary to ensure sustainability and equity;
4. Amafa aims to facilitate community access to cultural heritage resources and provide
appropriate auxiliary services, including opportunities for education and research;
5. Amafa aims to support tourism in KwaZulu-Natal by providing appropriate visitor facilities and
experiences;
6. Amafa aims to employ suitably qualified personnel to ensure that cultural heritage
management is conducted effectively;
7. Amafa aims to operate within the relevant legislative prescripts and regulations;
8. Amafa aims to continuously monitor and evaluate its own performance, and develop
innovative solutions appropriate to the Province’s heritage requirements; and
9. Amafa aims to facilitate learning in the field of heritage both within its staff complement and
within those with whom it interacts.

Pictured Above:

The Unveiling of the Ntshingwayo Memorial

Inkosi Ntshingwayo KaMahole, of the Khoza People (1809 - 1883) was one of King Cetshwayo’s principal advisers and
the commanding general at the Zulu victory of Isandlwana on 22 January 1879.
He was the OF
commanding
general who
led the Zulus against
the the
first British invasion
of Zululand in the
Anglo-Zulu
of
REPORT
THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE
ON THE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
FOR
THE War
YEAR
1879. He outmaneuvered Lt. Gen. Lord Chelmsford, diverting part of the British force, then defeating and annihilating the
ENDED
31British
MARCH
2015
encamped
Army at
the Battle of Isandlwana. Ntshingwayo is regarded as a Zulu hero and is believed to be one of the
oldest Zulu warriors to have fought. He died in battle, aged 74.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The Audit Committee comprises the following members:
Prof. IAS Vally (Chairperson), Ms. A Ruiters, Prince CT Zulu
AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38(1)(a)
of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted
appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in
compliance with this Charter, and has attempted to discharge its responsibilities as contained therein.
INTERNAL CONTROL
Whilst the members of the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal controls largely covers
organizational, financial and operating risks, control weaknesses are periodically identified during the
Internal and External audit processes. The committee closely monitors management actions to
remedy these breaches.
RISK MANAGEMENT
Amafa has developed and approved a risk management strategy. This strategy is the foundation for a
continuous risk management process and for managing and monitoring of risks on an ongoing basis.
INTERNAL AUDITING
The internal auditing provides a supportive role for management and the Audit Committee to achieve
their objectives by assisting in the management of risk within the entity.
The internal audit unit is responsible for independent and objective evaluation of the entity’s system of
internal control at a detailed level and to bring any significant business risks and exposures to the
attention of management and the committee through the provision of comprehensive internal audit
reports.
EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on the annual
financial statements and is of the opinion that the audited financial statements be accepted and read
together with the report of the Auditor-General.

Prof. IAS Vally
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
28 JULY 2015
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SERVICE DELIVERY PROGRAMME ANALYSIS FOR THE
YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2015
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SUMMARY OF SERVICE DELIVERY
TARGETS

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

PERCENTAGE
ACHIEVED

21

17

4

80,95%

Human Resources

7

5

2

Administration

5

4

1

Legal Services

6

5

1

Finance

3

3

0

18

15

3

Heritage Projects

6

5

1

Heritage Identification

6

4

2

Technical

2

2

0

Information, Communication and Technology

4

4

0

13

12

1

Collections and Interpretation

5

5

0

Education and Outreach

4

4

0

Management of the Ondini Historic Reserve

4

3

1

3

2

1

EOHP Management

3

2

1

PROGRAMME 5: RESEARCH AND
COMPLIANCE

22

21

1

22

21

1

6

5

1

6

5

1

83

72

11

DESCRIPTION
PROGRAMME 1: CORPORATE SERVICES

PROGRAMME 2: SUPPORT SERVICES

PROGRAMME3: ONDINI HERITAGE,
COLLECTIONS AND INTERPRETATION

PROGRAMME4: EMAKHOSINI OPHATHE
HERITAGE PARK

Research and Compliance

PROGRAMME 6: uMGUNGUNDLOVU MULTI
MEDIA CENTRE
MMC Management and Development

TOTAL

83,33%

92,31%

66,67%

95,45%

83,33%

86,75%

(This table (above) is not weighted per project, sub-programme or programme in any manner. The table is strictly calculated on
number of targets, the number of targets achieved, the number of targets that were not achieved and the percentage of targets
achieved per programme)
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PROGRAMME 1: CORPORATE SERVICES
PURPOSE
The corporates services function is responsible for providing financial control, human resources
management and strategic support to the organisation.
MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE
This programme aims to ensure effective and efficient management and support to the organisation,
through continuous refinement of the organisational strategies.
SUB – PROGRAMMES
Within the Corporate Services programme of Amafa, there are two (2) broadly defined subprogrammes viz:



The Finance Directorate; and
The Administration, Human Resources and Legal Directorate.

The duties of the each of these directorates are often interlinked though some may be specific to an
individual directorate. The role in supporting the overall goals of the organisation will hinge on:






Ensuring the delivery of cost effective transactional services as a key financial output;
Maintaining an approach geared towards the efficient use of organisational resources;
Improving support for internal processes by maintaining and (where necessary) enhancing
systems and processes;
Contributing to the establishment of a knowledge management culture and implementing an
efficient network that establishes the achievement of the organisation’s goals;
Supporting learning and growth objectives by refining the human capital plans of the
organisation, i.e. the leadership development plan and skills development plan.

Over the years governed by this strategic plan, the Directorate: Administration, Human Resources
and Legal will focus on enhancing the efficiency of its services through the re-organisation of the
recruitment function and by re-alignment of the human resource structure, based on the
organisation’s strategic goals.
The directorate aims to implement the strategic management of staff. Specific focus will be placed on
the attraction, development and retention of scarce skills.
The legal services unit provides a comprehensive legal support function to the organisation.
The Directorate: Finance will focus on compliance with all relevant statutes and regulations, most
notably the Public Finance Management Act. The directorate manages its risk by reviewing and
implementing policies, prescripts and current legislation pertinent to its operations and functions.

TRADITIONAL DOMESTIC ITEMS (left to right): SLEEPING MAT (ILANSI), BASKET (ISILULU) AND HEADREST
(ISIGQIKI)

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal
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SUB-PROGRAMME: HUMAN RESOURCES
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

The development of
skills is sufficient and
appropriate to service
the
growth
and
development needs of
Amafa

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Continuous
improvement of policies
to contribute to good
labour relations

Number of Reports on
the Audit of Human
Resources policies

One (1) Report on
the Audit of Human
Resources Policies

Assessment of human
capital to identify optimal
usage of resources in
the
promotion
and
transformation
of
organizational goals and
objectives

Capacitation of staff in
order to increase job
satisfaction, productivity,
knowledge base and
overall staff morale

Number of reports on
the Audit of Human
Capital presented to
Council

Present to Council,
one (1) Report on
the Audit of Human
Capital

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED









Number of Quarterly
Reports presented to
Council on the roll-out of
the Framework for the
Monitoring
and
Evaluation of Staff

Presentation of one
(1) Quarterly Report
on the Monitoring
and Evaluation of
Staff



Number
of
internal
capacitating
forums
attended by staff

Attendance of twelve
(12)
internally
managed
capacitating forums





Number
attending
managed
forums

Thirty-six (36) staff
members to attend
forums





Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

of
staff
externally
capacitating

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS



The Audit of Human Capital did not take
place during the 2014/15 year. A
management decision was taken for this
project to be outsourced in the 2015/16
year, so as to obtain an independent and
objective assessment of the status of the
human
capital
resources
of
the
organisation. A budget has been allocated
for the undertaking of this project in the
upcoming financial year

A trial run of the quarterly monitoring and
evaluation of lower-level staff at Shiyane
and
Isandlwana
was
successfully
undertaken.
A full system for the quarterly monitoring
and evaluation of staff at all levels, will be
implemented in the 2015/16 financial year
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

The development of
skills is sufficient and
appropriate to service
the
growth
and
development needs of
Amafa
Ensuring compliance
with
the
legal
requirements of the
human
resources
function
and
the
promotion of good
corporate governance

Promotion
of
transparency,
accountability
and
compliance with the
service delivery targets
of Amafa

Number
of
core
operational compliance
reports approved/noted
by
the
Executive
Committee

Twelve (12) reports
to
be
noted/approved by
the
Executive
Committee





Commitment to ensure
the financial integrity of
employees in efforts to
avoid
fraud
and
corruption

Number of Financial
Declaration
Interest
Reports presented to
Council

Presentation of One
(1)
Employee
Financial
Declaration
of
Interest





ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

THE SPIRIT OF EMAKHOSINI MONUMENT
The Emakhosini Valley (Valley of the Kings), is steeped in
a rich history. It was here that Nkosinkulu, the progenitor
of the Zulu Nation, settled over three hundred (300) years
ago. Also, many of the early Zulu Kings lived and are
buried here. The region, is also where King Shaka was
born and where the Zulu Empire has its roots. It has seen
some of the earliest conflicts between the Zulu Nation and
the advancing settlers.
The Spirit of Emakhosini Monument honours this history.
The beer-pot (ukamba) is an item found in every Zulu
houselhold. It symbolises the valley as the receptacle of
heritage. The consumption of beer is associated with
hospitality and social harmony. The horns of the seven (7)
animal species from this region (viz. waterbuck, Nguni
cow, eland, elephant, kudu, rhinoceros and reedbuck)
honour the seven (7) early Zulu Kings that lived and that
are buried in the Emakhosini. The horns also represent
the harmony between the cultural and natural
environment. The beaded necklace at the base (umbhijo)
showcases the beadwork skill traditionally associated with
this area.

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal
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OUTLOOK OVER THE EMAKHOSINI VALLEY

SUB-PROGRAMME: ADMINISTRATION
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

Management of the
administrative
function in order to
optimise performance
within
the
organisation

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE
Continuous
improvement of policies
to contribute to the
efficient and effective
administrative processes
of Amafa
Promotion
of
transparency,
accountability
and
compliance with the
service delivery targets
of Amafa

Establishment of links
with
educational
institutions and other
organs-of-state
to
partner in the crosstraining of staff

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Number of Reports on
the Audit of Human
Resources policies

One (1) Report on
the
Audit
of
Administrative
Policies





Number
of
core
operational compliance
reports approved/noted
by
the
Executive
Committee

Twelve (12) reports
to
be
noted/approved by
the
Executive
Committee





Number of Outcome
Reports
on
the
Partnering
Initiatives
presented to the Council

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

Presentation of One
(1) Outcome Report
on the Partnering
Initiatives

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED





DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

The two (2) partners for which links have
been established are:
1. The
Department
of
Education
(uMzinyathi District); and
2. The
KwaZulu-Natal
Museum:
Education Division.
Meetings have been held during the year
and we will look to build on these links in
the 2015/16 year forward
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

Management of the
administrative
function in order to
optimise performance
within
the
organisation

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

Increased awareness of
the
roles
and
responsibilities of Amafa
as the custodian and
promoter of heritage
within KwaZulu Natal

Electronic
archiving
management system for
the migration of records
from a manual to
electronic format

GRAVES AT SPIOENKOP BATTLEFIELD

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

Number
of
Reports
presented to the Council
of Amafa

Number of reports on
the digitization of the
Archives

2014/15 TARGET

Presentation of one
(1) Report on the
Implementation
of
the Marketing and
Public
Relations
Strategy
to
the
Council

One (1) report on
the pilot programme
for
the
archive
digitisation

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

Funding for the post of the Public Relations
and Marketing Officer has been included
as a part of the “Turnaround Strategy”. As
at year end, Amafa were requested to
present the “Turnaround Strategy” to the
Premier’s Portfolio Committee (which
resides within the Provincial Legislature).







AERIAL VIEW OF THE KWAZULU CULTURAL MUSEUM

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS
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Until such time that the “Turnaround
Strategy” has been approved and funded,
Amafa is not in a position to appoint a
Public Relations and Marketing Officer.
In the interim, certain functions and duties
of this post, will be absorbed within the
existing staff structures and operations, as
best as resources allow
The digitisation of archives has been
implemented and is proceeding well. The
priority focus is on the backlog of
documents currently in the archives.
However, due to the large volume of
records that require digitisation, the actual
scanning of the documents will continue
into the 2015/16 financial year (whereupon
it will be treated as an operational item)

ITALIAN POW CHURCH, PIETERMARITZBURG

EXAMPLES OF THREE (3)
NATURAL
HERITAGE
RESOURCES THAT RICHLY
ABOUND
THROUGHOUT
KWAZULU- NATAL
PICTURED FROM LEFT TO
RIGHT:

MTHONJANENI
SPRINGS, ZULULAND

WORLD’S VIEW,
PIETERMARITZBURG

HOWICK FALLS,
HOWICK

SUB-PROGRAMME: LEGAL SERVICES
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE
Continuous
improvement of policies
to contribute to the
efficient and effective
legal
processes
of
Amafa

Provision of effective
and efficient legal
services to Amafa

Promotion
of
transparency,
accountability
and
compliance with the
service delivery targets
of Amafa
Sensitization
of
the
judicial authorities and
other
relevant
law
enforcement
stakeholders for the
legal ramifications of
contraventions against
the KZN Heritage Act

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR
Number of reports on
the Audit of Legal
Policies
Number of sections of
Amafa for which the
operational frameworks
and policies have been
reviewed

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

One (1) Report on
the Audit of Legal
Policies





Review of Five (5)
sections





Number
of
core
operational compliance
reports approved/noted
by
the
Executive
Committee

Twelve (12) reports
to
be
noted/
approved by the
Executive
Committee





Number of outreach
events undertaken to
prosecutors

Conduct twelve (12)
outreach events to
prosecutors





Number of engagements
with police services on
the
problems
experienced

Attend
four(4)
engagements
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DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

Provision of effective
and efficient legal
services to Amafa

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

Formalisation of links
with institutions and
other organs-of-state to
partner
in
the
management
of
Provincial
Heritage
Resources

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

Number
of
links
formalized and signed

2014/15 TARGET

Formalisation
and
signing of five (5)
links with partners

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED





DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS
Draft
Memoranda
of
Agreements/
Understanding have been established with
the following:
1. Ezemvelo
KZN
Wildlife
(two
memoranda of agreement). Efforts to
finalise the agreements proved
fruitless, due to issues with their
Board and upper management
structures;
2. South African Heritage Resources
Agency. The MoU with SAHRA is
pending the signature of approval
from the partner;
3. Maritime SA. This MoU is also
pending the signature of approval
from the partner;
4. Tourism KZN. The draft document
has been submitted to them but we
have yet to receive a response; and
5. The Royal Household. The draft
document has been submitted to the
partner but we have yet to receive a
response
Further, we have entered into an infra-red
photography data-sharing agreement with
the University of Witwatersrand

PICTURED LEFT TO RIGHT: ROCK ART IN THE DRAKENSBERG, KING DINGANE’S SPRING AND CENTACOW
MISSION
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SUB-PROGRAMME: FINANCE
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

Financial management
that is effectively and
efficiently utilises of
the
organisation’s
financial resources

Ensuring compliance
with standards and
norms that promotes
good governance

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Continuous
improvement of policies
to contribute to the
efficient, effective and
transparent
financial
processes

Number of reports on
the Audit of Financial
Policies

One (1) Report on
the
Audit
of
Financial Policies



Promotion
of
transparency,
accountability
and
compliance with the
service delivery targets

Number
of
core
operational compliance
reports approved/noted
by
the
Executive
Committee

Twelve (12) reports
to
be
noted/
approved by the
Executive
Committee



Promotion
of
accountability
and
transparency
to
the
Province
for
the
utilization of public funds
in the roll-out of service
delivery
targets
&
operations

Number
of
reports
submitted to the various
stakeholders

Submission of four
(4) reports



ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS



KING DINGANE’S SPRING (MTHONJANENI)
Tradition held that a king should have exclusive access to clean
water for the purposes of drinking and bathing. This tradition arose
from the water sources having become polluted by the large numbers
of people and cattle living near the Royal Homestead.
During the reign of King Dingane ka Senzangakhona, Mthonjaneni
had such a spring (pictured alongside) that was a clean and exclusive
water-source for the King’s needs. Everyday selected girls would
walk the eight (8) kilometres from Mgungundlovu to Mthonjaneni to
collect water for the King.

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal
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PROGRAMME 1:

CORPORATE SERVICES
Main
appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Additional appropriation

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Virement/
Reprioritisation
(R ‘000)

Other
adjustments
(R ‘000)

Total
additional
appropriation
(R ‘000)

12 595

470

1 078

1 548

14 143

Compensation of
employees

7 320

192

264

456

Goods and services

5 275

278

814

674

1 455

674

13 269

Economic
classification

Current payments

Actual
Amount
(R ‘000)

Unspent

% of
Budget

Amount
(R ‘000)

% of
Budget

13 243

93,64%

900

6,36%

7 776

7 953

102,28%

(177)

-2,28%

1 092

6 367

5 290

83,08%

1 077

16,92%

150

1 605

2 279

2 513

110,27%

(234)

-10,27%

1 455

150

1 605

2 279

2 513

110,27%

(234)

-10,27%

1 925

1 228

3 153

16 422

15 756

95,94%

666

4,06%

Other
Transfers and
subsidies to:
Payments for capital
assets
Buildings and other fixed
structures
Machinery and
equipment
Other capital assets
Total Economic
Classification:
Programme 1
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PROGRAMME 2: SUPPORT SERVICES
PURPOSE
To preserve sites of cultural and historical significance and to provide public access to these sites in a
sustainable manner.
MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE
The aim of the programme is to conserve and develop provincial heritage sites in terms of the
KwaZulu – Natal Heritage Act.
HERITAGE SITES
i.

SHIYANE/RORKES DRIFT
The world-renowned battlefields of Isandlwana and Shiyane/Rorkes Drift have been developed by
Amafa for public use and have become premier tourist attractions within the Province. Gate
takings at both sites amounted to R 571 438.00. Amafa is a major employer within the area and
provides a substantial component of wages to local workers, both permanent and temporary.
During the 2014/15 year, Amafa completed the paving of the pedestrian paths and public-use
areas as well as undertaking the landscaping of the gardens
In addition to the Visitor’s Interpretive Centre and the Battlefield, is Azaria Mbatha Exhibition Hall,
which was opened during the 2013/14 year and has proved quite popular amongst visitors to the
Centre.
Azaria Mbatha is a well-known international artist, now living in Sweden, who was trained at the
Evangelical Lutheran Church (ELC) Rorkes Drift Art and Craft Centre during the 1960's. Due to
the added significance to the site, Amafa and the ELC now partner in managing the site, bringing
this extra artistic dimension to life over a sombre battlefield setting. The ELC Craft Centre still
produces artwork, mainly in the form of its famous tapestries and ceramics and these are sold via
a shop facility, made available by Amafa to the Craft Centre, at no cost.
Amafa also assists a local tour guide, Thulani Khuzwayo and his partner in creating a sustainable
restaurant and guiding business at Rorkes Drift.
During the 2014/15 the Centre has had over 13 500 visitors.
The Battle of Rorke's Drift was an epic
battle in the Anglo-Zulu War. The defence
of the mission station of Rorke's Drift,
under the command of Lieutenant John
Chard of the Royal Engineers, and
Lieutenant
Gonville
Bromhead
immediately followed the British Army's
defeat at the Battle of Isandlwana on 22
January 1879, and continued into the
following day, 23 January.
Just over 150 British and colonial troops
successfully defended the garrison
against an intense assault by Zulu
warriors. The massive, but piecemeal
Zulu attacks on Rorke's Drift came very
close to defeating the tiny garrison but
were ultimately repelled. Eleven (11)
Victoria Crosses were awarded to the
defenders, along with a number of other
decorations and honours.

Above:

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

Memorial to the Fallen situated at Rorke’s Drift
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ii. ISANDLWANA
The Isandlwana Historic Reserve has been in existence for over 25 years and is jointly managed
by Amafa and Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife.
During the year under review Isandlwana was visited by 16 258 people, generating gate takings
of R 303 173.00 (gross). It must be noted that the Mangwebuthanani Traditional Council, within
whose area of jurisdiction the battlefield is located, are paid 25% of these gate takings – a rare
example of true benefit to local communities. Regular liaison meetings take place between the
Traditional Council and Amafa. Labour for maintaining the battlefield is drawn from the four (4)
wards within the Traditional Authority.
On 22 January 1879, Isandlwana was the site of the Battle of
Isandlwana, where Zulu warriors defeated a contingent of
approximately 1,350 British and Native troops in one of the first
engagements of the Anglo-Zulu War. The force was largely wiped
out by the Zulus under Cetshwayo. The battle remains the single
greatest defeat for the British Army at the hands of a native army.
Pictured Left:
The Isandlwana Battlefield
Pictured Below: Memorial to the Fallen, Isandlwana

iii. SITES OF CONFLICT
Amafa is responsible for over fifty (50) sites of conflict within the province, many of which form an
important part of the Provincial Tourism Strategy. While maintenance of these sites has gradually
been handed over to Amafa, no commensurate increase in budget has been received.
Consequently, Amafa focuses greater efforts on the maintenance of the more popularly visited
sites over those with a lower visitor count. A Memorandum of Agreement is established with the
Commonwealth War Graves Commission which subsidises the maintenance of various Sites of
Conflict. This funding agreement, which totals an annual amount of approximately R 100 000.00,
with the Commission assists in the mitigation of the aforementioned maintenance problem.
During the year, Amafa has appointed a permanent maintenance officer in Ladysmith, to oversee
the maintenance work required in this region.
The Spioenkop site is the third most visited battlefield in the Province and generated
approximately R 104 646.00 from the 5 404 visitors to the site. A notable project commissioned
during this year was the upgrade of the access road to the Spioenkop Battlefield site.
The Ceza Memorial (pictured left), is a tribute to the unnamed Zulu warriors
who fell at the Battle of Ceza. The British authorities in Natal appealed to the
Cape for help and, in 1888, 2 000 troops were sent to mount operations against
King Dinuzulu, who was besieged a fort at the mouth of the uMfolozi River. Six
hundred (600) men under Major McKean, including a young officer called
Robert Baden-Powell, marched to relieve the fort, which occurred with little
effort. Baden-Powell was detailed to track down King Dinuzulu and eventually
found him and his followers sheltering in Ceza Mountain. They Zulus managed
to escape before the attack and fled to the Transvaal Republic. King Dinuzulu
realised that he could not win against the British and subsequently surrendered.

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal
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iv. EMAKHOSINI OPHATHE HERITAGE PARK AND UMGUNGUNDLOVU MULTIMEDIA CENTRE
The Emakhosini Project launched in 1999 stands as Amafa's most ambitious project to date. The
aim was to consolidate all the land comprising the Valley of the Kings, where the seven (7) early
Zulu Kings lived and are now buried.
2

The adjacent 8 000 ha Ophathe Game Reserve has been incorporated into the project. The
entire area, now known as the Emakhosini Ophathe Heritage Park, is jointly managed by Amafa
and Ezemvelo Wildlife KZN in terms of a strategic plan which was developed for this project.
Labour tenant issues have created challenges for the project. These issues are well documented
and have been brought to the attention of the Provincial Legislature in the hope of finding an
agreeable solution to all parties involved in this area. In an effort to resolve these issues, the
Council of Amafa has established a Task Team that includes members of the affected community
and nominated councillors, to address the problems.
Located within the Emakhosini Ophathe Heritage Park, is the uMgungundlovu Reconstruction, an
archaeological site situated at King Dingane's capital. At this site, Amafa maintains the royal
enclosure comprising thirty (30) beehive huts.
Other sites of interest also situated within the Park are the graves of the seven (7) early Zulu
kings and various other heritage resources in the protected areas that are maintained on a regular
basis.
v. HERITAGE IDENTIFICATION
Amafa has for several years been involved in projects designed to allow communities to identify
heritage sites and either nominate these sites for protection or request the marking of the site by
means of memorials or standardised markers.
The Community Heritage and Grading Sub-committee of Council made significant progress
toward formalisation of this process and during the year under review approved the erection of
markers commemorating Zulu combatants at one (1) Site of Conflict. In addition, memorials were
erected at a further four (4) ancestral sites. The Committee has also overseen the design of a
process that enables local authorities to liaise more effectively with Amafa on issues of heritage,
this in the absence of established heritage forums.
The Burgher Memorial, Ladysmith
(pictured

right),

erected

in

1979

honours the 781 Boers who were killed
in Natal during the South African War
1899 – 1902. The monument consists of
seven stylised hands reaching up to the
sky. Each hand represents a battle of
the Natal campaign in the region viz.
Talana, Elandslaagte, Nicholsen’s Nek,
Colenso, Spioenkop,

Vaalkrans

and

Pieters/Wagon Hill. On each ‘wrist’ is a
plaque listing the names of those who
fell at each battle. The hands form a
circle around a giant grave where the
remains of 310 Boers were re-interred.
Several of the men’s headstones can be

Amafa
AkwaZulu
seen
embedded inNatali/Heritage
the wall around the KwaZulu Natal
monument.
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vi. INFORMATION, COMMUNICATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY (ICT)
The Programme focuses on provision of an ICT advisory and technical support to the
management of Amafa. The KZN Heritage Act requires that Amafa maintain registers of heritage
resources. This sub-program is responsible for the maintenance of all heritage inventory
schedules attached to heritage management and for the systematic development of the
associated Geographical Information Systems (GIS) component.
In pursuance of greater on-line functionality, the Amafa website has been upgraded to allow all
heritage landmarks to be located via its integrated Google Earth application which also allows
spatial searching. Pictured below is the heritage atlas for the Ugu District Municipality.

HERITAGE ATLAS FOR THE UGU DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY
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SUB-PROGRAMME: HERITAGE PROJECTS
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE
Continuous
improvement of policies
to
enhance
the
operational
and
management processes
of sites
Promotion
of
transparency,
accountability
and
compliance with the
service delivery targets

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Number of reports on
the Audit of Heritage
Management Policies

One (1) Report on
the Audit of Heritage
Management
Policies



Number
of
core
operational compliance
reports noted by the
Executive Committee

Seventy-two
(72)
reports to be noted
by the EXCO



ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS



Project 1:

Number
of
projects
completed at Rorkes
Drift/Shiyane Precinct
Protection,
enhancement
and
development
our
provincial
heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Improvements to sites
and facilities that will
enhance the overall
experience of the public
whilst promoting the
cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province
Improvements to sites
and facilities that will
enhance the overall
experience of the public
whilst promoting the
cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province

Paving
of
Pedestrian
Paths
and Public Areas
Project 2:
Indigenous
landscaping of Gardens
Project 1:
Erect three (3) signs
at
Shiyane/
Isandlwana
(as
required
by
the
Department
of
Transport)





There were delays in the approval of the
service provider for this project. As a result,
the project only commenced in February
2015, which was much later than the
initially anticipated date.

Number
of
projects
completed at Sites of
Conflict
Project 2:



Construction
of
400m2 of road to the
Spioenkop site

As at year end, the project was well
underway and it is expected that the
project will be completed in the First
Quarter of the 2015/16 year.
A rollover of the project funds was
approved by the KZN Provincial Treasury
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SUB-PROGRAMME: HERITAGE IDENTIFICATION
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Continuous
improvement of policies
to enhance the
operational and
management processes
of heritage identification

Number of reports on
the Audit of Heritage
Identification Policies

One (1) Report on
the Audit of Heritage
Identification
Policies

Improvements to sites
and facilities that will
enhance the overall
experience of the public
whilst promoting the
cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province
Protection,
enhancement and
development our
provincial heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Improvements to sites
and facilities that will
enhance the overall
experience of the public
whilst promoting the
cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province

Involvement of the
general public in the
identification and
research of heritage
sites

Number of ancestral
sites at which markers
or memorials are to be
erected

Number of existing sites
branded as a Heritage
Resource of the
Province

Erection of Markers
or Memorials at four
(4) sites

Branding of twentyfive (25) sites

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED



DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS



During the year, markers were erected at
the following ancestral sites:














During the 2014/15 year, we exceeded the
planned target by branding an additional
two (2) sites. Therefore in total, we were
able to brand twenty-seven (27) sites whilst
remaining within the allocated budget for
this project. The districts that were branded
were as follows:



Number of markers
erected at Sites of
Conflict

Erect one (1)
marker at Sites of
Conflict

Number of communitybased projects
undertaken

One (1) project
undertaken with a
community and/or
student group
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Ntshingwayo;
Lembede;
Umbiya; and
Makheni

The Edumbe District where thirteen
(13) sites were marked; and
The
uThungula
District
where
fourteen (14) sites were marked.

A marker was erected at the Ceza Site

We were unable to source neither a
suitable project team nor we were able to
identify a suitable survey to be conducted
during the year

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS
The Shakaskraal Indentured Labourers
Cemetery was approved for the erection of
the Community Heritage Memorial.

Protection,
enhancement and
development our
provincial heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Involvement of the
general public in the
identification and
research of heritage
sites

Number of communitybased projects
undertaken

Erection of one (1)
Community Heritage
Memorial

The site was nominated by Shakaskraal
Heritage Group, who had also initially
submitted their own design proposal in
October 2014. However, as at December
2014, we had received no further response
from the Group with regard to this design.





In January 2015, Amafa then submitted a
new design proposal to the applicants, who
then accepted this only in March 2015,
whereupon the order was then placed.
It is envisaged that this memorial will be
erected during the First Quarter of the
2015/16 financial year.
A rollover of these funds has been
approved by the KZN Provincial Treasury

SUB-PROGRAMME: TECHNICAL
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE
Promotion of
sustainable and
equitable use of
heritage resources

Facilitate public
access for heritage
resources and
providing facilities for
education, research
and tourism

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE
Continuous
improvement of policies
to enhance the technical
work at heritage sites

Improvements to sites
and facilities that will
enhance the overall
experience of the public
whilst promoting the
cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Number of reports on
the Audit of Technical
Policies

One (1) Report on
the Audit of
Technical Policies

Number of display
panels installed

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

Installation of eight
(8) display panels

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED
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DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS





The following display panels were erected:
1. Isandlwana Orientation;
2. Isandlwana View-sheds;
3. Shiyane Orientation;
4. Shiyane Entrance;
5. The Drift (at Rorkes Drift);
6. Ultimatum Tree;
7. King Dingane’s Spring; and
8. Fort Mthonjaneni
9. The Spirit of Emakhosini; and
10. Self-Guided
Trail
Panels
at
uMgungundlovu

SUB-PROGRAMME: INFORMATION, COMMUNICATION AND TECHNOLOGY
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Support of the core
heritage
and
administrative
functions of Amafa

Continuous
improvement of policies
to
enhance
the
Information,
Communication
and
Technological
environment of Heritage
Management

Number of reports on
the Audit of Information,
Communication
and
Technology Policies

One (1) Report on
the
Audit
of
Information,
Communication and
Technology Policies

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED













DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

Project 1:

Sufficient
ICT
infrastructure
is
available
for
the
growth, administrative
and
development
needs of Amafa and
the
Province
of
KwaZulu Natal

Enhancement of the
internet-based services
and facilities offered on
the website to promote
public interaction with
the organisation

Number
of
completed

Complete re-design
of the interface and
all
interactive
components of the
Amafa website

As a part of the re-design, the website also
boasts a virtual tour of the Isandlwana
Battlefield

Project 2:
Number
of
completed

Enhancement of the
internet-based services
and facilities offered on
the website to promote
public interaction with
the organisation

projects

projects

Number
of
district
municipalities for which
heritage atlases have
been completed

Establishment of a
social
media
presence

Completion
of
heritage atlases for
two
(2)
district
municipalities





Heritage Atlases were completed for the
following two (2) districts:
1.
2.

The Ugu District Municipality; and
The Sisonke District Municipality

PICTURED LEFT TO RIGHT
TEMPLE OF UNDERSTANDING, CHATSWORTH;
SOOFIE BHAAIJAAN MASJID, DURBAN;
RICHENAU MISSION CHURCH, UNDERBERG
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PROGRAMME 2:

SUPPORT SERVICES
Additional appropriation

Main
appropriation
2014/2015

Virement/
Reprioritisation

Other
adjustment

Total
additional
appropriation

Current payments

5 927

(375)

164

Compensation of
employees

4 241

(38)

164

Goods and services

1 686

(337)

Economic classification

Actual

Projected

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015

Amount

% of
Budget

Amount

% of
Budget

(211)

5 716

5 070

88,70%

646

11,30%

126

4 367

4 188

95,90%

179

4,10%

(337)

1 349

882

65,38%

467

34,62%

Other

Transfers and subsidies
Payments for capital
assets

4

4

0,00%

4

100,00%

4

4

0,00%

4

100,00%

88,64%

650

11,36%

Buildings and other fixed
structures
Machinery and equipment

Other capital assets

Total Economic
Classification:
Programme 2

5 931

(375)
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5 070

PROGRAMME 3: ONDINI HERITAGE, COLLECTIONS AND INTERPRETATION
This programme includes the following sub-programs:
1.
2.
3.

Collections and Exhibitions;
Educational programmes; and
Management of the Ondini Historic Reserve.

PURPOSE





Management of the collections of the KwaZulu Cultural Museum situated on the Ondini Historic
Reserve and the archaeological collection housed in Pietermaritzburg;
Management of the KwaZulu Cultural Museum and its related functions viz. education, display
management and the management of facilities;
Management of the permanent and temporary exhibitions at Amafa sites;
Management of cultural and historic sites within the Ulundi and northern Zululand regions.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE




Management, conservation and curation of all collection items in terms of the legislative and
policy prescripts
Promotion of the Museum as a centre for learning through the coordination of research
programmes and educational outreach trips to schools and communities;
Management of the Ondini precinct and satellite sites of historic importance in and around the
Ulundi-Zululand region

1. COLLECTION ITEMS
i.

EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH ARTWORK
During the last financial cycle (2013/14), the Evangelical Lutheran Church Art and Craft
Centre, located in Rorkes Drift, generously donated their entire print collection to Amafa.
These items totalling 704 items comprising mostly prints showcase not just artwork but also
the rich talent of the artists trained at the world-renowned by the Art and Craft School between
1968 and 1982.
THE BATTLE OF ULUNDI
The Battle of Ulundi took place on July 4,
1879 after British forces crossed the uMfolozi
River and marched onto the Zulu capital,
Ondini. Today the site is marked by a stone
monument (pictured left) that pays tribute to
the fallen Zulu and British soldiers. The
5 124 British troops which included 958 Zulu
volunteers were confronted by 15 000 Zulu
men. The British cut through the Zulu
advance forcing them to retreat. This allowed
the British to then march onto Ondini
whereupon they set fire to the place forcing
King Cetshwayo to seek refuge in the Ngome
forest. Two months after the Battle the king
was captured and exiled to the Cape.
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ii.

Collection Trips
The 2014/15 year saw the undertaking of collection trips to the Bergville region. The purpose
of such trips were to identify and acquire items that will currently fill the void of underrepresented heritage resources within our existing collection and to acquire items that in the
future will lend itself to the traditional and cultural heritage of our Province.
At these trips, we were able to acquire some 198 items including various grass and wooden
artefacts.

2. Exhibitions and Museum
i.

TEMPORARY EXHIBITIONS
In 2014/15, Amafa showcased two (2) new exhibitions at the KwaZulu Cultural Museum, in
addition to the one (1) already-standing exhibit at the KwaZulu Natal Provincial Legislature.
These exhibitions were:
 The “Twenty Years of Democracy Exhibit”; and
 The “People of KwaZulu-Natal Exhibit”.

ii.

THE VIRTUAL MUSEUM
The Virtual Museum, accessible via our website, gives users from any part of the world a
point-of-view perspective of all the facilities and areas of the KwaZulu Cultural Museum. The
Virtual Museum tour can be accessed via http://www.zulu-museum.co.za/virtualtour/

Above (left to right):

(1) Learners being trained in traditional skills; and (2) Lecture
to learners about the heritage within the Zululand region

3. EVENTS AND CELEBRATIONS
During the year, there were two (2) significant celebratory events hosted by the KwaZulu Cultural
Museum. These were:
i.
Museums Day (May 2014); and
ii.
Heritage Day Celebration (September 2014).

Pictured Left: King
Shaka’s Bath Place,
Dukuza
Pictured Right: Old
Fort Road Cemetery,
Durban
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SUB-PROGRAMME: COLLECTIONS AND INTERPRETATION
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Continuous improvement
of policies to enhance the
operational and
management processes
Collections and
Interpretation Policies

Number of reports on the
Audit of Collections and
Interpretation Policies

One (1) Report on the
Audit of Collections
and Interpretation
Policies

Acquisition of items that
are under-represented
thereby transforming the
existing collection into one
that exemplifies all the
heritage of the Province
Management,
conservation and
curation of all collection
items in terms of the
legislative and policy
prescripts

Migration of the
Archaeology accession
register to an electronic
register to ensure the
sustainability of records

Creating accessibility of
the archaeology data to
the public by the inclusion
of the existing data onto
SAHRIS
Display of temporary
exhibitions at sites in and
around the Province in
order to create a sense of
heritage amongst the
people of the Province

Number of collecting trips
undertaken

Undertake one (1)
collection trip

ACHIEVED





NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS





During the year, we undertook the collection
trip to the Bergville region in KwaZulu-Natal.
We were able to purchase 198 items to add to
our collections. These items included wood
and grass artefacts

Number of electronic
archaeology accession
registers compiled

Compile one (1)
electronic archaeology
accession register





As at year end, 221 archaeological collection
items were accessioned. The accessioning of
items includes (but is not limited to):

the taking of photographs for each
individual item;

the assignment of a number each item;

The repacking of items; and

The capturing of records for each item
onto the database

Number of reports on the
interface of newly acquired
archaeological items onto
SAHRIS

Compile one (1) report
on the interfacing of
newly acquired
archaeological items
onto SAHRIS





All 221 archaeological items that were
accessioned, has been interfaced on to
SAHRIS



The temporary exhibitions on display for the
2014/15 year were:
1. The Twenty Years of Democracy
Exhibition; and
2. The People of KwaZulu Natal Display

Number of temporary
exhibition displays
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SUB-PROGRAMME: EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

During the 2014/15 financial year, we were
able to undertake twenty-seven (27) outreach
trips to schools.

Promotion of the
museum as a center for
learning through the
coordination of
educational
programmes and
educational outreach
trips to schools and
communities

The promotion and
appreciation of our
heritage amongst the
youth of the Province

Conducting of heritagebased activities to
inculcate a culture of
heritage appreciation and
value amongst the people
of KwaZulu-Natal

Number of outreach trips
to schools undertaken

Undertake twenty two
(22) outreach trips to
schools





We were able to visit an additional five (5)
schools beyond the planned target, by
arranging to visit certain other schools that
were within a reasonable proximity of those
schools that were scheduled for our visitation

Number of skills training
workshops hosted

Host twenty two (22)
skills-training
workshops at Ondini





During the year, we were able to host twentysix (26) skills training workshops

Number of “celebration
day” events hosted

Host two (2)
“celebration day”
events





The two (2) celebration events that we hosted
during the year were:
1. Museum’s Day in May 2014; and
2. Heritage Day in September 2014

Number of holiday events
hosted

Host five (5) holiday
events





SUB-PROGRAMME: MANAGEMENT OF THE ONDINI HISTORIC RESERVE
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

Management of the
Ondini precinct and
sites of historic
importance in and
around Ulundi and
northern KZN

Improvements to sites and
facilities that will enhance
the overall experience of
the public whilst promoting
the cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province

Number of projects
undertaken

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

Project 1:
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DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

The hut that was built at Panorama Point was
accidentally burnt down only a few days after
the completion of the construction.
Project 2:
Conversion of
Panorama Point into a
picnic facility

Management of the
Ondini precinct and
sites of historic
importance in and
around Ulundi and
northern KZN

Improvements to sites and
facilities that will enhance
the overall experience of
the public whilst promoting
the cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province





In an attempt to drive away wasps that were
nesting nearby, embers caught onto the thatch
from the hut, sparking a fire that completely
razed the structure
We will rebuild the hut in the 2015/16 financial
year

Number of projects
undertaken

Project 3:
Construction of two (2)
collection rooms





Due to conflicting schedules between the built
environment function and Ondini Reserve
team there were delays in the compiling and
finalisation of the plans for the collections
rooms. As a result, this project could not
commence as per the initially planned date
which resulted in the project not being
completed by year-end.
As at year-end, the construction is at roof
height. We expect the building to be
completed in mid-April 2015.
A rollover for the funding of this project was
approved by the KZN Provincial Treasury

Promotion of
transparency,
accountability and
compliance with the
service delivery targets of
Amafa

Number of core
operational compliance
reports approved/noted by
the Executive Committee

Thirty-six (36) reports
to be noted/approved
by the Executive
Committee





Number of quarterly
reports submitted to the
Executive Committee

Submission of four (4)
quarterly reports to the
Executive Committee
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SOME DISPLAY ITEMS AT THE KWAZULU CULTURAL
MUSEUM
Pictured Alongside (Left to Right):

The original Bible and the Silver Mug given to King
Cetshwayo by Queen Victoria

Necklace made by either lion and/or leopard claws. The
use of such adornment was restricted to those of royalty
Pictured Below (Left to Right):

A Beaded Cellphone Pouch – highlighting the use of
traditional skills in the modern era;

Battle Axe – although mostly used ceremonially, these
battle axes were commonplace in warfare and/or
domestic use;

A Beaded Domestic Apron;

The Shield – constructed from cured animal hide. This
was the only protection for a warrior on the Battlefield.
Colours and/or patterns on the shield would distinguish
to which regiment a warrior belonged; and

A beaded switch traditionally used by a sangoma
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PROGRAMME 3:

ONDINI HERITAGE, COLLECTIONS AND INTERPRETATION
Additional appropriation

Economic classification

Main appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Virement/
Reprioritisation
(R ‘000)

Other
adjustments
(R ‘000)

Total
additional
appropriation
(R ‘000)

Actual

Unspent

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Amount
(R ‘000)

% of
Budget

Amount
(R ‘000)

% of
Budget

Current payments

6 055

(65)

188

123

6 178

6 145

99,47%

33

0,53%

Compensation of employees

4 708

(25)

188

163

4 871

4 765

97,82%

106

2,18%

Goods and services

1 347

(40)

(40)

1 307

1 380

105,59%

(73)

-5,59%

Payments for capital assets

305

200

200

505

112

22,18%

393

77,82%

Buildings and other fixed
structures

300

(50)

(50)

250

78

31,20%

172

68,80%

5

250

250

255

34

13,33%

221

86,67%

6 360

135

323

6 683

6 257

93,63%

426

6,37%

Other

Transfers and subsidies to:

Machinery and equipment
Other capital assets

Total Economic
Classification: Programme 3
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PROGRAMME 4: EMAKHOSINI OPHATHE HERITAGE PARK
PURPOSE
This programme deals with 26 000 ha Emakhosini Valley, the heritage park which acknowledges the
birthplace of the Zulu people and the Ophathe Game reserve.
MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE
The objective of this programme is the consolidation and management of the land and its utilization by
the public. This includes:







Finalisation of management arrangements between Amafa and Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife;
Proclamation;
Resolution of social issues;
Establishment of tourist infrastructure;
Consolidation of land holdings – either by purchase or incorporation; and
Marketing and utilization of the Park.

SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
This programme is in an advanced stage of implementation. The Province and National Government
have invested significantly in this programme through the provision of funds for the purchase of land
and development of infrastructure. This is in excess of R 44 000 000.00 to date.
MAJOR HERITAGE PROJECTS WITHIN THE PARK
The eMakhosini Valley of the Zulu Kings is the location of the burial sites of the early kings that lived
in this region. One (1) of them, King Senzagakhona was the father of the three (3) most famous Zulu
kings, namely, Shaka, Dingane and Mpande.
The striking Spirit of the eMakhosini monument was built in 2003 and celebrates the rich traditional
Zulu history of the area, with the animal horns on the monument representing the kings buried in the
Valley. During the 2011/2012 period, this monument was visited by 4 652 visitors.
OTHER HERITAGE SITES WITHIN THE PARK
The following heritage sites lie within the Park:
Graves of the Zulu kings (the first seven points only):
 Nkosinkulu;
 Zulu;
 Mageba;
 Phunga;
 Ndaba;
 Jama;
 Senzangakhona;
 Dinuzulu (situated just outside the Park boundaries);
 Grave of Queen Mthaniya;
 Spirit of eMakhosini Monument;
 Grave and memorial of Piet Retief and his followers;
 uMgungundlovu Archaeological Site;
 Isiklebeni Archaeological Site;
 Isiklebeni Homestead; and
 Battlefields of KwaGqokli and Ophathe.
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IMPORTANT SATELLITE SITES
The following are the important satellite sites of the region:
 Biyela, Buthelezi, Ngobese Ancestral Sites;
 Fort Mthonjaneni;
 King Dingane’s Spring; and
 Grave of Dirkie Uys.
ZULU ROYAL MONARCHY
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SUB-PROGRAMME: EOHP MANAGEMENT
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Continuous improvement
of policies to enhance the
operational and
management processes
of sites

Number of reports on the
Audit of Heritage
Management Policies for
the EOHP

One (1) Report on the
Audit of Heritage
Management Policies
for the EOHP

ACHIEVED



NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS



The full tender process was completed in
January 2015. All that remained was the
approval and appointment of the service
provider, by the Council.

Protection,
enhancement and
development our
Provincial heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Upon the presentation to Council for the
appointment of the service provider, staff was
instructed to re-draft the design and to employ
a project manager to undertake the work.

Project 1:

Improvements to sites and
facilities that will enhance
the overall experience of
the public whilst promoting
the cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province

Renovation of Student
Accommodation
(Phase 1)





Number of projects
completed

In doing this, the budget would escalate to
over R 2 million whereas the tender value and
initial budget was approx. R 1,4 million. In light
of this, the Executive Committee took a
decision to not commence with the project as
we did not have sufficient funds to complete
this project.
The budget that was initially allocated to the
project was reprioritised and the project was
scaled down. The scaled down project will be
undertaken in the 2015/16 financial year.

Project 2:
Installation of 6,5 km
of fencing for the
Wildebeest areas
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ROYAL GRAVES (top row left to right):




KING SENZANGAKHONA;
KING ZULU;
KING JAMA;

Bottom row (left to right):

KING MPANDE;

KING NDABA;

KING NKOSINKULU;

KING PHUNGA

BELOW LEFT TO RIGHT:

MEMORIAL TO THE FALLEN, RORKES DRIFT; MEMORIAL TO THE FALLEN, ISANDLWANA
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PROGRAMME 4:

EMAKHOSINI OPHATHE HERITAGE PARK

Economic classification

Main
appropriation
2014/2015

Additional appropriation
Virement/
Reprioritisation

Other
adjustments

Actual

Total additional
appropriation

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015

Amount

Projected

% of
Budget

Amount

% of
Budget

Current payments

3 488

(387)

40

(347)

3 141

1 655

52,69%

1 486

47,31%

Compensation of employees

1 393

(17)

40

23

1 416

1 315

92,87%

101

7,13%

Goods and services

2 095

(370)

(370)

1 725

340

19,71%

1 385

80,29%

Payments for capital
assets

1 000

(1 000)

Buildings and other fixed
structures

1 000

(1 000)

4 488

(1 387)

(347)

3 141

1 655

52,69%

1 486

47,31%

Other

Transfers and subsidies

Machinery and equipment

Other capital assets

Total Economic
Classification: Programme
4
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PROGRAMME 5: RESEARCH AND COMPLIANCE
PURPOSE
The programme is responsible for the provision of accurate information to complement the
compliance mandate of the organisation. Amongst other functions, it also provides the data for the
information at the interpretive centres and sites as well as obtaining data and artefacts of historical
significance from previously neglected areas by conducting surveys and studies.
MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE
The objectives of the Research and Compliance programme are to:






Ensure compliance with the KZN Heritage Act;
Provide accurate information service to complement the compliance function;
Generate new heritage-related information specifically in areas previously neglected;
Provide a data management function; and
Provide an accurate information service to support the interpretive function of the organisation

OVERVIEW
i.

BUILT ENVIRONMENT
The core function of the Built Environment unit is the processing and approval or rejection of
demolition and alteration permits for any modifications to protected structures. This unit is
assisted and guided by the Built Environment Committees which comprise experts in the relevant
fields.
Review of existing surveys and conducting surveys of areas not previously surveyed, specifically
areas previously neglected.
This sub-programme aims to assist the public with restoration of historically and architecturally
significant structures by maintaining and managing a materials bank and through financial
assistance where available.

ii. ARCHAEOLOGY
The primary function of the Archaeology unit is the processing of needs and desirability
applications for development. This function is assisted by a Permit Review Committee and is
made up experts in the field of archaeology.
Joint management (KZN Nature Conservation Service is the partner) of Rock Art sites in the
Ukhahlamba Drakensberg Transfrontier Park (UDP).
Review of existing surveys and conducting surveys of areas not previously surveyed, specifically
areas previously neglected.
Amafa maintains the provincial archaeology repository.
iii. HERITAGE INVENTORIES
The Act requires that Amafa maintains registers of various heritage resources.
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SUB-PROGRAMME: RESEARCH AND COMPLIANCE
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

Protection,
enhancement
and
development
our
Provincial
heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Continuous improvement
of policies to enhance the
operational
and
management
processes
for
Research
and
Compliance

Number of reports on the
Audit of all Research and
Compliance Policies

One (1) Report on the
Audit of all Research
and
Compliance
Policies





Promotion
of
transparency,
accountability
and
compliance
with
the
service delivery targets of
Amafa

Number
of
core
operational
compliance
reports approved/noted by
the Executive Committee

Thirty-six (36) reports
to be noted/approved
by
the
Executive
Committee





Compile sixteen (16)
management plans for
the those sites within
the
Ukhahlamba
Drakensberg Park





Compile
ten
(10)
management plans for
sites within the Buffer
Zone





Compile
one
(1)
Cultural and Heritage
Resources
Management
Plan
Document





Documentation
of
guidelines and procedures
that are compliant with
legislation
and
best
practices, in order manage
heritages sites so as to
protect and conserve the
heritage of sites

The
collection
of
information and research
in the identified gaps of the
knowledge-base of the
Province in order to create
an understanding of the
facets of the Province’s
heritage

Number of Management
Plan Documents compiled

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

Project 1:
Number of research and
survey projects completed
and the reports thereon
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DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

We could not undertake this survey as we
were unable to source and appoint a suitable
service provider to conduct the research work.
Despite several advertisements being place in
various media and numerous invites being
sent out to potential service providers, we
received no expressions of interest. As such
we were not able to achieve this target

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

Project 2:
The
collection
of
information and research
in the identified gaps of the
knowledge-base of the
Province in order to create
an understanding of the
facets of the Province’s
heritage

Number of research and
survey projects completed
and the reports thereon

One (1) report on the
Survey of Heritage
Resources
in
the
Ithala Game Reserve

























Project 3:
Baseline Research for
the Nomination of the
EOHP as a World
Heritage Site
Project 1:

Protection,
enhancement
and
development
our
Provincial
heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Archiving
of
all
research and surveys
related to the MalutiDrakensberg
Park
World Heritage Site
Administration
of
Provincial
Heritage
Resources to ensure that
their
management
is
compliant with current
legislation, standards and
norms so as to preserve
the
integrity
of
the
resource

Project 2:
Number of compliance and
management
projects
completed

Archiving
of
all
research and surveys
related to The EOHP
Project 3:
Cataloguing of items
in the Materials Bank
Project 4:
Draft publication on
the
Bergville
Blockhouse Project
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DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

Project 5:
Monitoring
regime
report
on
the
Drakensberg
Park
Cluster
Monitoring
Programme in Royal
Natal
Project 6:













Monitoring regime for
the Central Buffer
Zone
Project 9:





Conduct three (3)
monitor
training
sessions for sites
outside the UDP













Graffiti removal at two
(2) rock art sites
Project 7:

Protection,
enhancement
and
development
our
Provincial
heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Administration
of
Provincial
Heritage
Resources to ensure that
their
management
is
compliant with current
legislation, standards and
norms so as to preserve
the
integrity
of
the
resource

Infra-red photography
reports for two (2)
sensitive
sites
requiring
graffiti
removal
Project 8:
Number of compliance and
management
projects
completed

Project 10:
Undertake six (6) rock
art road shows
Project 11:
Undertake four (4)
built environment road
shows
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DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

Project 12:
Undertake four (4)
archaeology
road
shows

Protection,
enhancement
and
development
our
Provincial
heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Administration
of
Provincial
Heritage
Resources to ensure that
their
management
is
compliant with current
legislation, standards and
norms so as to preserve
the
integrity
of
the
resource













Project 13:

Number of compliance and
management
projects
completed

Undertake twelve (12)
Section 38 compliance
monitoring inspections

Project 14:
Conduct
one
(1)
training session with
Department
of
Environmental Affairs
and Agriculture and
other stakeholders
PIET RETIEF GRAVE (left)
In November 1837 Piet Retief, hoping to be given vacant land for Boer settlers met with King Dingane at Mgungundlovu.
As part of an agreement, Retief agreed to retrieve 300 Zulu cattle stolen by Sikonyela.

Retief deceived Sikonyela and ransomed him for all his cattle, guns and horses. Apart from the 300 Zulu cattle, Retief
auctioned the balance of the spoils. In February 1838 Retief returned to Mgungundlovu and was received by King Dingane
who was already wary of white settlers. Retief’s handling of Sikonyela confirmed King Dingane’s suspicions and after a
meeting on 6 February 1838, the Retief party were taken to Kwamatiwane (Execution Hill) and killed. Today the site is
marked with a memorial at the top of the hill and a mass grave where the remains of the Boer party were buried. The hill
was named Kwamatiwane after the leader of the amaNgwane people, Matiwane, who was put to death on the hill in 1829,
along with his followers.
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PROGRAMME 5:

RESEARCH AND COMPLIANCE

Economic classification

Main
appropriation
2014/2015

Additional appropriation
Virement/
Reprioritisation

Other
adjustments

Actual

Total additional
appropriation

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015

Amount

Projected

% of
Budget

Amount

% of
Budget

Current payments

3 604

(190)

100

(90)

3 514

3 242

92,26%

272

7,74%

Compensation of employees

2 660

30

100

130

2 790

2 755

98,75%

35

1,25%

944

(220)

(220)

724

487

67,27%

237

32,73%

Goods and services
Other

Transfers and subsidies
Payments for capital
assets

15

15

0,00%

15

100,00%

15

15

0,00%

15

100,00%

91,87%

287

8,13%

Buildings and other fixed
structures
Machinery and equipment

Other

Total Economic
Classification: Programme
5

3 619
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3 529

3 242

PROGRAMME 6:

uMGUNGUNDLOVU MULTI MEDIA CENTRE

PURPOSE
This programme has been established for the management of Multi Media Centre at uMgungundlovu
and the surrounding sites which pays homage to the early Zulu kings and the history of this region.
MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE
This programme concerns itself with the management of the following:
 The Multi Media Centre at uMgungundlovu;
 The Reconstruction at uMgungundlovu;
 The JK Ngubane Centre; and
 Heritage Sites with the Emakhosini Ophathe Heritage Park
SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
The eMakhosini Valley of the Zulu Kings is the location of the burial sites of the early kings that lived
in this region. One (1) of them, King Senzangakhona was the father of the three (3) most famous
Zulu kings, namely, Shaka, Dingane and Mpande.
This imaginative Multi Media Centre links the sites that showcases four (4) centuries of Zulu history
and promotes reconciliation and nation-building. This centre, built with local blue-black concrete with
a distinctive look-out tower lies on the lee of the royal homesteads. Exhibits and a lively audio-visual
production introduce visitors to the region and rich living culture of the Zulus.
An educational facility, the JK NGUBANE MULTI-PURPOSE CENTRE has been built. It was
established as a legacy to Mr. JK Ngubane and this centre exhibits the history and facts associated
with him. The centre also serves for accommodation to guests of Amafa as well to approved
researchers undertaking work in the region.
NGUNI CATTLE PROJECT
Nguni cattle are central to Zulu culture and tradition. One of the objectives of the Project is to
th
recreate the 19 century environment in so far as it is possible to do so.
th

Since Nguni cattle were an integral part of the 19 century environment, it is intended that this herd of
Nguni cattle be established in the Heritage Park. These cattle will be an additional tourist educational
attraction. In addition, they will be utilised to provide economic benefit to the local people who will be
invited to run, under supervision, Nguni cattle on the Heritage Park. To this end, Amafa has
established a herd of Nguni Cattle in the Park.
BORDER CAVE (pictured right) is located in the Lebombo
Mountains on the border between South Africa and
Swaziland. It is an extremely rich archaeological site with
over a million Stone Age artefacts having been recovered
along with some of the earliest anatomically modern Homo
Sapiens remains ever discovered. Scientists have concluded
that people used this cave as shelter for more 200 000 years.
Among the most important finds was the body of an infant,
dating back 100 000 years, which had been painted with red
ochre and buried together with a shell ornament. This makes
it the oldest known deliberate burial in Africa and, if such
burial can be taken to mean a concern with the afterlife, it
would be the earliest evidence of the emergence of religion
as well.
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SUB-PROGRAMME: MMC MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVE

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

2014/15 TARGET

Continuous improvement
of policies to enhance the
operational
and
management
processes
of sites

Number of reports on the
Audit
of
Heritage
Management Policies for
the uMgungundlovu Multi
Media Centre

One (1) Report on the
Audit
of
Heritage
Management Policies
for
the
uMgungundlovu Multi
Media Centre

ACHIEVED

NOT
ACHIEVED

























DEVIATIONS/COMMENTS

Project 1:
Creation
of
SubConference Area

Project 2:

Protection,
enhancement
and
development
our
Provincial
heritage
assets and resources
for perpetuity of use

Fitment of Geotextile
Covers at ten (10)
huts
at
the
uMgungundlovu
Reconstruction
Improvements to sites and
facilities that will enhance
the overall experience of
the public whilst promoting
the cultural and heritage
fabric of the Province

Number
of
projects
completed
at
the
uMgungundlovu
Multi
Media Centre

Project 3:
Host two (2) Courses
for Guides on Content
and
Service
Improvements

Project 4:
Construction of road
to the Centre

Project 5:
Construction of a new
water feature
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Due to resource constraints we were unable to
undertake both courses. We did host one (1)
course during the year

PROGRAMME 6:

uMGUNGUNDLOVU MULTI MEDIA CENTRE

Economic classification

Main
appropriation
2014/2015

Additional appropriation
Virement/
Reprioritisation

Other
adjustments

Actual

Total additional
appropriation

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015

Amount

Projected

% of
Budget

Amount

% of
Budget

Current payments

3 758

(58)

104

46

3 804

3 855

101,34%

(51)

-1,34%

Compensation of employees

2 968

32

104

136

3 104

3 067

98,81%

37

1,19%

790

(90)

(90)

700

788

112,57%

(88)

-12,57%

Payments for capital
assets

100

(50)

(50)

50

41

82,00%

9

18,00%

Buildings and other fixed
structures

100

(50)

(50)

50

41

82,00%

9

18,00%

3 858

(108)

(4)

3 854

3 896

101,09%

(42)

-1,09%

Goods and services
Other

Transfers and subsidies

Machinery and equipment
Other

Total Economic
Classification: Programme
6
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH
2015
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OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BY PROGRAMME LEVEL
Additional appropriation
Programme

CORPORATE SERVICES

Main appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Virement/
Reprioritisation
(R ‘000)

Other
adjustments
(R ‘000)

Total
additional
appropriation
(R ‘000)

Actual

Unspent

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Amount
(R ‘000)

% of
Budget

Amount
(R ‘000)

% of
Budget

13 269

1 925

1 228

3 153

16 422

15 756

95,94%

666

4,06%

SUPPORT SERVICES

5 931

(375)

164

(211)

5 720

5 070

88,64%

650

11,36%

ONDINI HERITAGE,
COLLECTIONS AND
INTERPRETATION

6 360

135

188

323

6 683

6 257

93,63%

426

6,37%

EMAKHOSINI OPHATHE
HERITAGE PARK

4 488

(1 387)

40

(1 347)

3 141

1 655

52,69%

1 486

47,31%

RESEARCH AND
COMPLIANCE

3 619

(190)

100

(90)

3 529

3 242

91,87%

287

8,13%

MULTI MEDIA CENTRE

3 858

(108)

104

(4)

3 854

3 896

101,09%

(42)

-1,09%

37 525

-

1 824

1 824

39 349

35 876

91,17%

3 473

8,83%

Total Payments & Estimates

PICTURED ABOVE LEFT TO RIGHT:
THE CONSTRUCTING OF A
TRADITIONAL HUT;
PRINCE IMPERIAL GRAVE, SHIYANE
THE OLD ARMOURY, NEWCASTLE;
BUFFALO BRIDGE
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OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BY ECONOMIC CLASSIFICATION

Economic classification

Main
appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Additional appropriation
Virement/
Reprioritisation
(R ‘000)

Other
adjustments
(R ‘000)

Total
additional
appropriation
(R ‘000)

Actual

Unspent

Adjusted
appropriation
2014/2015
(R ‘000)

Amount
(R ‘000)

% of
Budget

Amount
(R ‘000)

% of
Budget

CURRENT PAYMENTS

35 427

(605)

1 674

1 069

36 496

33 210

91,00%

3 286

9,00%

Compensation of employees

23 290

174

860

1 034

24 324

24 043

98,84%

281

1,16%

Goods and services

12 137

(779)

814

35

12 172

9 167

75,31%

3 005

24,69%

PAYMENTS FOR CAPITAL
ASSETS

2 098

605

150

755

2 853

2 666

93,45%

187

6,55%

Buildings and other fixed
structures

1 400

(1 100)

(1 100)

300

119

39,67%

181

60,33%

698

1 705

150

1 855

2 553

2 547

99,76%

6

0,24%

37 525

-

1 824

1 824

39 349

35 876

91,17%

3 473

8,83%

Other

Machinery and equipment
Other

TOTAL ECONOMIC
CLASSIFICATION
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RECONCILIATION OF PERFORMANCE INFORMATION TO EXPENDITURE PER THE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DESCRIPTION

AMOUNT

EXPENDITURE AS PER THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Less:
Depreciation
Heritage Assets
Increase in Leave Pay Provision
Increase in Bonus Pay Provision
Commitments from 2013/14
Provision for Doubtful Debts

36 031 994
- 1 758 884
- 41 254
- 132 132
- 42 581
- 832 593
- 14 722

Add:
Purchase of Vehicles
Purchase of Computer Equipment
Purchase of Equipment
Building and Construction

2 235 473
33 356
278 309
119 172

EXPENDITURE AS PER THE ANNUAL REPORT

35 876 138

ULTIMATUM TREE, Thukela River
The fig tree (ficus sycamorus) grows to a
height of 35 metres. The tree is attractive
to various fruit eating animals and the
bark and latex are known to have
traditional healing properties against
ringworms.
Photographs from the period would
indicate that the Ultimatum tree was
already older than 30 years when the
ultimatum was handed over. Some 100
years on, this tree was still alive.
However, due to various disasters over
time, the tree that is at the site today was
propagated from cuttings of the original
tree. The propagated tree was planted
next to the stump of the original tree.

In July, 1878, a cross-border incident involving Mehlokazulu
kaSihayo gave the British government in Natal, the necessary
leverage to claim that King Cetshwayo was in breach of promises
he made at his coronation in 1873.
On 11 December 1878, a delegation representing King
Cetshwayo met British representatives under a sycamore fig tree
located on the southern bank of the Thukela River. An ultimatum,
threatening war was handed over to the Zulu delegation. King
Cetshwayo was unable to meet all the conditions stipulated
therein, in particular the disbanding of the Zulu Military System,
the very framework that held the Zulu Nation together. The Zulu
Nation consisted of a confederacy of clans unified by the military
system established by King Shaka
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The Ultimatum set by the British:

The age regiment system for the
Zulu be abolished;

That the King relinquish control over
young men and to allow regiments
to marry without the King’s consent;

The King control killings within
Zululand;

Missionaries that fled Zululand, be
allowed to return; and

Sihayo’s sons and the Swazi
Prince, Mbilini be surrendered and
fines be paid for their raids in Natal
and Transvaal.
The disbanding of the age regiment
system would amount to the total
destruction of the Zulu social system.
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COMMITMENTS FROM 2013/14 YEAR
PROJECT NAME/DESCRIPTION

AMOUNT COMMITTED

EXPENDITURE AS AT
31.03.2015

AMOUNT REMAINING

Ukhahlamba Drakensberg Park Survey

99 020

(99 020)

-

Beehive Hut Survey

47 500

(47 500)

-

Monitoring Regime for the UDP

48 500

(48 500)

-

Graffiti removal at Esikholweni Rock Art Site

38 700

(38 700)

-

Compilation of interpretative materials at Businghata

19 912

(19 912)

-

Compilation of interpretative materials at Cascades

19 912

(19 912)

-

Infra-red photography for sites that require graffiti removal

45 405

(45 405)

-

Excavation work at the Emakhosini

75 354

75 354

-

147 280

(147 280)

-

41 000

(41 000)

-

6 750

(6 750)

-

Heritage Identification project - Verulam

47 500

(47 500)

-

Production and installation of memorial - Khondlo Pool

57 456

(57 456)

-

Installation of a dedicated power supply to the Umuzi

57 820

(57 820)

-

177 840

(177 840)

-

1 058 915

(1 058 915)

-

Audio Visual programme at Kwa-Dukuza
Heritage Identification project – DUT
Heritage Identification project – Shakaskraal

Tiling of hut roofs at the Umuzi
TOTALS
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COMMITMENTS INTO 2015/16
PROJECT NAME/DESCRIPTION

EOHP Survey Of Uitzoek

INITIAL
BUDGET

EXPENDITURE AS AT
31.03.2015

AMOUNT
COMMITTED

34 770

-

34 770

287 280

(23 713)

263 567

1 386 432

-

1 386 432

Collection Rooms At Ondini

245 296

(78 132)

167 164

Cupboards For The Collection Rooms At Ondini

293 503

-

293 503

Digitisation Of Archives

40 470

-

40 470

Acquisition Of Furniture For Boardroom

18 850

-

18 850

Renovations To Pietermaritzburg Office

167 010

-

167 010

90 844

-

90 844

470 522

-

470 522

3 034 976

(101 845)

2 933 131

Road To Spioenkop Battlefield
Road To The Umgungundlovu Multi Media Centre

Electrical Consultant For Work At Pietermaritzburg
Electrical Work At Pietermaritzburg Office

TOTALS
Pictured Left to Right:
The Nelson Mandela Capture Site
(original monument), Lions River
Grey Street Mosque, Durban
Anglo-Boer
Wynnhill

War

Memorial,
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDING 31 MARCH 2015
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
The 2014/15 financial year started with ninety eight (98) permanent staff members and by the end of
the year this number increased to one hundred (100). The movement of staff will be demonstrated in
the table below.
The shortage of staff has always been a challenge in the organisation and the year under review was
no different. An application to the Office of the Premier for the creation of posts for Amafa was
approved however the budget to enable the implementation and filling of posts was not forthcoming.
An application for the additional budget to enable the appointment of staff was made to the Provincial
Treasury, via the Medium Term Expenditure Framework process but this was also not approved, as
the Provincial fiscus is not in a position to provide sustainable funding.
The Council of Amafa tasked the management of Amafa to compile a Turnaround Strategy aimed at
addressing amongst other issues, the staff shortages. It was the intent of Council to present the
Strategy to the Office of the Premier, the Premier’s Portfolio Committee and to the Finance Portfolio
Committee. The purpose of the presentation was to highlight and enable their understanding
regarding the challenges that face Amafa. Their understanding of such challenges would lend
support to Amafa’s request for an increase in budget. As at year end, we have made presentations to
the Office of the Premier and the Provincial Treasury. We still await a date for when we can present
the Strategy to the relevant Portfolio Committees. Uncertainty over the actualisation of this
presentation to the Committees lingers, in light of the Premier’s announcement regarding the
amalgamation of heritage within KwaZulu–Natal. It is hoped that with the merger, comes not only an
increase in the budget but also a resolution to all matters highlighted by the Turnaround Strategy.
As at year end, the position of Chief Executive Officer was still remained vacant. During the year, the
position was advertised and after an intensive process of reviewing applicants and conducting
interviews, three (3) candidates were short-listed. It was at this point that the Office of the Premier
expressed their desire to have input into the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer. The short-list
of candidates was sent to them for their consideration. It was then that the Premier announced his
intent regarding the merging of heritage within the Province. With this intent in mind, the Premier said
that the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer would be addressed with the entire merger
process. In the interim, Mrs. LZ Msomi, who was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer in
August 2013, will continue to hold this office until such time that a permanent appointment has been
made.

PICTURED ABOVE:

NELSON MANDELA CAPTURE SITE MONUMENT (HOWICK)

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

Page 60

Employment and Vacancies
The following table summarises the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees and the vacancy rate. The table is presented in terms of
occupational levels as identified by each directorate within the organisation:
MALES

FEMALES

Occupation level

VACANT POSTS

TOTAL

VACANCY
RATE

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Senior Management

-

-

1

1

1

-

-

1

1

5

20,00 %

Assistant Director

1

-

1

-

2

-

1

1

0

6

-

Principal/Senior Heritage Officer

5

-

-

-

4

-

-

2

3

14

21,43 %

Administrative Officers

-

-

-

-

8

-

-

-

0

8

12,50 %

Technicians and Artisans

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0

2

-

Clerks, Guides and Reception

2

-

-

-

7

-

-

-

0

9

-

Drivers

3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0

3

-

General Assistants

21

-

-

-

21

-

-

-

2

44

4,55 %

Foremen

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0

1

-

Patrollers

9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0

9

-

Interns

-

-

-

-

2

-

-

-

0

2

-

Heritage Officers

2

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

2

5

40,00 %

TOTAL

46

-

2

1

46

-

1

4

8

108

7,41 %
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Resignations and Retirement
The following table provides a summary of employee resignations and retirement, according to their occupational level during the 2014/2015 financial year:

Occupation level

MALES

FEMALES

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Senior Management
Principal/Senior Heritage Officer
Administrative Officers
Technicians and Artisans
Clerks, Guides and Reception
Drivers
General Assistants
Foremen
Patrollers
Interns
Long-term Contract Employees

3
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Heritage Officers

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

TOTAL

3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

The table below presents a brief description of the departure of employees during the financial year:
Termination Type
Death
Resignation
Termination of Contract
Dismissal (misconduct)
Discharge due to ill-health
Retirement
Transfers to other organs of state
TOTAL

Number
0
1
0
3
4
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Employee Progression and Development
Disclosed below, is the summary of staff recruitment for the period under review. This has been categorised according to the structural level into which the
respective member of staff was recruited.
MALES

FEMALES

Salary Band

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Lower Skilled (Levels 1 - 2)
Skilled (Levels 3 - 5)
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6 - 8)
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9 - 10)
Senior Management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

TOTAL

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

In an effort to increase employee skill levels, various members of staff were capacitated by the attendance of training courses, workshops, seminars and
other forums which addressed development needs. The statistics of attendance of such forums is listed in the table below (disclosure per occupational level):

Occupation level

MALES

FEMALES

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Senior Management
Principal/Senior Heritage Officer
Administrative Officers
Technicians and Artisans
Clerks, Guides and Reception
Drivers
General Assistants
Foremen
Heritage Officers
Interns
Long-term Contract Employees

4
2
21
1
-

-

-

-

2
4
4
3
14
2
-

-

-

1
-

TOTAL

28

-

-

-

29

-

-

1
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Job Progression
The following table summarises the number of post progressions during the year under review. The table also gives details of the number of job upgrade and
downgraded. This table is presented according to the structural level of the organisation.
Number of
posts

Number of
Jobs Evaluated

Percentage of Posts
Evaluated

Posts Upgraded

Posts
Downgraded

Lower Skilled (Levels 1 - 2)
Skilled (Levels 3 - 5)
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6 - 8)
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9 - 10)
Senior Management

-

-

-

-

-

TOTAL

-

-

-

-

-

Salary Band

Disciplinary Action
Disciplinary action was taken against one (1) contract employee. The employee in question was found guilty of misconduct and the contract was terminated.
Pictured Left:

St. Joseph’s Cathedral,
Besters near Ladysmith

Pictured Right:

The
Blaaukrantz
Memorial, Colenso

Pictured Below:

The
Schuinshoogte
Memorial, iNgogo
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OVERALL ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

Page 65

AMAFA AKWAZULU NATALI/HERITAGE KWAZULU-NATAL
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDING 31 MARCH 2014
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Contents

Page

General information

68

Report of the Auditor-General

69

Statement of financial position

73

Statement of financial performance

74

Statement of changes in net assets

75

Cash flow statement

76

Notes to the annual financial statements(incorporating the accounting
policies)

77 – 84

Supplementary schedules to the audited financial statements:Detailed statement of financial performance

85

Notes to the detailed statement of financial performance

86

The financial statements set out on pages to 68 were 86 approved by the Council on
30 July 2015 and signed on their behalf by:

MR. JABULANI SITHOLE
CHAIRMAN: AMAFA AKWAZULU NATALI
31 JULY 2015

Amafa AkwaZulu Natali/Heritage KwaZulu Natal

MRS. LINDIWE ZERICH MSOMI
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
31 JULY 2015

Page 67

GENERAL INFORMATION
NAME OF PUBLIC ENTITY

AMAFA AKWAZULU-NATALI

PARENT DEPARTMENT

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER

TYPE OF PUBLIC ENTITY

SCHEDULE 3C - PER THE PFMA NO. 1 OF 1999

CONSTITUTED IN TERMS OF

THE KWAZULU NATAL HERITAGE ACT NO. 4 OF 2008

STREET ADDRESS – PMB

195 LANGALIBALELE STREET
PIETERMARITZBURG
3201

STREET ADDRESS - ULUNDI

CARE OF KWAZULU CULTURAL MUSEUM
KING CETSHWAYO HIGHWAY
ULUNDI
3838

POSTAL ADDRESS - PMB

PO BOX 2685
PIETERMARITZBURG
3200

POSTAL ADDRESS - ULUNDI

PO BOX 523
ULUNDI
3838

CONTACT NUMBERS

033 394 6543
035 870 2050

FAX NUMBERS

033 342 6097
035 870 2054

WEBSITE

www.kznheritage.co.za

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL

MR. DJ SITHOLE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MRS. LZ MSOMI (Acting)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

MR. A RAMPERSAD

NAME OF BANK
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Auditor’s report
Amafa akwaZulu-Natali
31 March 2015
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Report of the auditor-general to the KwaZulu-Natal
Provincial Legislature on Amafa akwaZulu-Natali
Report on the financial statements
Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Amafa aKwaZulu-Natali set out on pages
73 to 84, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow
statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and
for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3.

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

4.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

5.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my audit opinion
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Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Amafa akwaZulu-Natali as at 31 March 2015 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Statements
of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Additional matter
7.

I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules
8. The supplementary information set out on pages 85 to 86 does not form part of the
financial statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these
schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
9.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)
(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report
findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for
selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, compliance with
legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable
findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express
assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on
these matters.

Predetermined objectives
10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information for programme 2: support services on pages 23 to 31,
programme 3: Ondini heritage, collections and interpretation on pages 32 to 38,
programme 5: research and compliance on pages 44 to 49 as well as programme 6:
uMgungundlovu multimedia centre on pages 50 to 52 presented in the annual
performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2015.
11. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of
usefulness and reliability.
12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine
whether it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting
principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned
programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were
well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by
the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information
(FMPPI).
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13. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it
was valid, accurate and complete.
14. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the selected programmes 2, 3, 5 and 6.

Additional matters
15. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the selected programmes, I draw attention to the following
matters:

Achievement of planned targets
16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 12 to 58 for information on the
achievement of the planned targets for the year.

Unaudited supplementary schedules
17. The supplementary information set out on pages 59 to 65 does not form part of the
annual performance report and is presented as additional information. I have not audited
these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express a conclusion thereon.

Compliance with legislation
18. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with
applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other
related matters. I did not identify any instances of material non-compliance with specific
matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control
19. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual
performance report and compliance with legislation. I did not identify any significant
deficiencies in internal control.

Pietermaritzburg
29 July 2015
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